

## BOARD OF DIRECTORS MOBILE SOURCE COMMITTEE

## **COMMITTEE MEMBERS**

SHELIA YOUNG - CHAIRPERSON ROBERTA COOPER JAKE McGOLDRICK JULIA MILLER PAMELA TORLIATT TIM SMITH – VICE CHAIRPERSON JERRY HILL NATE MILEY JOHN SILVA

MONDAY DECEMBER 6, 2004 9:30 A.M.

#### FOURTH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM DISTRICT OFFICES

#### AGENDA

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL

2. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.3) Members of the public are afforded the opportunity to speak on any agenda item. All agendas for regular meetings are posted at District headquarters, 939 Ellis Street, San Francisco, CA, at least 72 hours in advance of a regular meeting. At the beginning of the regular meeting agenda, an opportunity is also provided for the public to speak on any subject within the Committee's subject matter jurisdiction. Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each.

#### 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 14, 2004

4. TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR (TFCA) ADDITIONAL REGIONAL FUND GRANT AWARDS FOR FY 2004/2005 J. Roggenkamp/4646

jroggenkamp@baaqmd.gov

Consider recommending Board of Directors' approval of additional TFCA Regional Fund grant awards for Fiscal Year 2004/2005.

5. EXPENDITURE PLAN FOR MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRATION SURCHARGE

J. Roggenkamp/4646

jroggenkamp@baaqmd.gov

Consider recommending Board of Director's approval and forward to the California Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) a resolution requesting the collection of an additional \$2 fee from motor vehicles registered within the Air District's jurisdiction for an expanded Carl Moyer Program.

#### 6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/OTHER BUSINESS

Any member of the Committee, or its staff, on his or her own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, may: ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement or report on his or her own activities, provide a reference to staff regarding factual information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter or take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. (Gov't Code § 54954.2).

# 7. TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING: 9:30 a.m., JANUARY 13, 2005, 939 ELLIS STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA

#### 8. ADJOURNMENT

#### CONTACT CLERK OF THE BOARDS - 939 ELLIS STREET SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94109

(415) 749-4965 FAX: (415) 928-8560 BAAQMD homepage: <u>www.baaqmd.gov</u>

- To submit written comments on an agenda item in advance of the meeting.
- To request, in advance of the meeting, to be placed on the list to testify on an agenda item.
- To request special accommodations for those persons with disabilities notification to the Clerk's Office should be given at least three working days prior to the date of the meeting so that arrangements can be made accordingly.

# AGENDA NO. 3

## BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 939 ELLIS STREET SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94109 (415) 771-6000

## **DRAFT MINUTES**

Summary of Board of Directors Mobile Source Committee Meeting 9:30 a.m., Thursday, October 14, 2004

- 1. Call to Order Roll Call: Chairperson Shelia Young called the meeting to order at 9:50 a.m.
  - **Roll Call:** Shelia Young, Chairperson; Roberta Cooper, Nate Miley (10:05 a.m.), Julia Miller, John Silva, Tim Smith, Pam Torliatt.
  - Absent: Jerry Hill, Jake McGoldrick.

Also Present: Scott Haggerty (10:46 a.m.), Gayle Uilkema.

- 2. Public Comment Period: There were no public comments.
- **3.** Approval of Minutes of July 8, 2004: Director Miller moved approval of the minutes; seconded by Director Cooper; carried unanimously without objection.
- **4.** Contractor Selection for the Expansion of the Vehicle-Buy-Back Program: The Committee considered recommending Board of Directors' approval of vehicle dismantling contractors for the expansion of the FY 2004/2005 Vehicle Buy Back Program.

Vanessa Mongeon, Environmental Planner, presented the report and provided background information on the program and contractor selection for the Vehicle Buy Back Program (VBB) vehicle dismantlers.

Ms. Mongeon stated that in fiscal year (FY) 2004/2005, the District will enter its ninth funding cycle for the VBB Program. For the eight previous funding cycles, the District has allocated a total of \$16.5 million to scrap 23,865 vehicles. Through the end of August 2004, 20,586 vehicles have been scrapped. The remaining vehicles to be scrapped under the current FY 03/04 contracts with Pick Your Part, Pick-N-Pull, and Environmental Engineering Studies should be completed within the next four months. In July 2004, the Board approved changes for the FY 04/05 VBB Program, including an increase in the price paid per each eligible vehicle to \$650 and an expansion of the eligibility to include model year 1985 and older vehicles. The District's FY 04/05 budget allocated \$3.5 million in TFCA funds to continue implementation of the VBB Program dismantler contracts.

Ms. Mongeon explained that the amendments to the FY 03/04 contracts will include 1985 and older vehicles and the purchase price of \$650 for each qualifying vehicle, and will apply until the contract amounts are fully expended. At that time, the FY04/05 contracts will begin to apply.

On August 17, 2004, the District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) seeking contractors for the FY 04/05 VBB Program. The scope of work contained in the RFP conforms to the California Air Resources Board-adopted Voluntary Accelerated Light-Duty Vehicle Retirement Regulation (VAVR) that went into effect in July 2000. The RFP was mailed to 31 companies and posted on the District and Association of Bay Area Government's website.

District staff evaluated the new proposals using the following five criteria: (1) price, (2) available resources and customer relations, (3) coverage and availability, (4) advertising, (5) understanding of program and thoroughness of the proposal.

In response to questions from Director Miller, Jean Roggenkamp, Director of Planning and Research, explained that last year the budget for the VBB Program was \$3.5 million, and when the budget was prepared for this fiscal year, staff used the same amount. This amount will accommodate the increase to buy back the vehicles.

Ms. Mongeon stated that staff recommends:

- 1) the Board approve Environmental Engineering Inc., Pick-N-Pull, and Pick Your Part as the vehicle dismantling contractors for FY 04/05 VBB Program;
- the Board authorize the Executive Officer/APCO to execute contracts for up to \$1.25 million with Environmental Engineering Inc., \$1 million with Pick-N-Pull, and \$1.25 million with Pick Your Part;
- 3) the Board authorize the Executive Officer/APCO to amend the existing FY 03/04 contracts to pay \$650 per vehicle and increase the eligible vehicle model year to 1985 and older.

**Committee Action:** Director Smith moved that the Committee recommend the Board approve the staff recommendations as stated above; seconded by Director Torliatt; carried unanimously without objection.

**5.** Transportation Fund for Clean Air Regional Fund Grant Awards for FY 2004/2005: The Committee considered recommending Board of Directors' approval of Transportation Fund for Clean Air Regional Fund grant awards for FY 2004/2005.

Juan Ortellado, Grant Programs Manager, presented the recommendations for the FY 2004/2005 TFCA Regional Fund grant awards and reviewed the background, the funding process, and evaluation criteria for the Committee. There were 42 projects totaling \$8.9 million (including the Regional Rideshare Program) that achieved the minimum 40 point score and met the \$90,000 per ton cost-effectiveness threshold. Staff recommended grants totaling \$8.9 million to 42 eligible projects, as presented. Mr. Ortellado stated that there are two projects that are not being recommended for funding, sponsored by the San Francisco and Oakland International Airports, respectively. These will be further reviewed and the results of this process would be presented during the next Committee meeting.

Mr. Ortellado stated that the California Air Resources Board (CARB) has adopted a new regulation that applies to public and private owners of solid waste collection vehicles (SWCVs). The regulation, which went into effect in July 2004, requires fleet owners to employ Best Available Control Technology (BACT) to reduce emissions of particulate matter (PM) from SWCVs. The regulation does not require any reduction of nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions. Available data indicates that approximately 2,000 trucks in the Bay Area are subject to the SWCV regulation. Fleets subject to the regulation are currently in the process of determining their compliance

strategies. In the absence of incentive funding, it is expected that most fleets subject to the regulation will comply with the baseline requirements to reduce PM emissions only.

Staff recommends that the Board allocate the remaining \$1.5 million in FY 2004/2005 TFCA Regional Funds to provide incentives for additional emission reductions related to the SWCV regulation. Public agencies would apply for TFCA funds (on behalf of their own refuse collection fleets, or private fleets that perform refuse collection under franchise agreements within their communities) for funding to reduce emissions beyond the requirements of the CARB SWCV regulation. Staff estimates that funding retrofit filters would achieve a cost-effectiveness of \$10,000-\$12,000 per ton of NOx reduced, and that funding the incremental cost of natural gas engines would achieve a cost-effectiveness of \$35,000-\$40,000 per ton of NOx reduced. If the Committee and the Board approve the allocation of TFCA Regional Funds for this initiative, staff will issue a call for projects in November 2004.

Mr. Ortellado stated that staff recommends that the Committee recommend Board approval of the following:

- Staff recommendations for FY 2004/2005 TFCA Regional Fund grant awards, as presented, totaling \$8.9 million (including the Regional Rideshare Program); and
- Allocation of \$1.5 million to provide incentives for surplus emissions reduction from refuse truck fleets.

During discussion, Mr. Ortellado explained the process for the allocation of \$1.5 million to provide incentives for surplus emissions reductions from refuse truck fleets. He stated that staff will be asking for applications in November, 2004; staff will also be participating in the October 26, 2004 Regional Refuse Fleet Workshop to be held in San Francisco, which will provide an opportunity to communicate this matter to the refuse hauling industry. Director Torliatt suggested that staff should let the other cities and counties know that there is \$1.5 million surplus available as unallocated funds. Jean Roggenkamp explained that staff is proposing to target the funding at this time because there is a specific window of opportunity. She stated that there are about 2,000 refuse haulers and staff will be notifying all of them. Some of the refuse fleets need to comply with the SWCV regulation within the first year and some over a longer period of time.

Director Miller requested that Project # 04R48, sponsored by the City of Sunnyvale, be taken off the list of recommended projects for further review by staff. Staff confirmed that this item would be taken off the list.

Based on the discussions on the allocation of the \$1.5 million to provide incentives for surplus emissions reduction from refuse truck fleets, the Committee bifurcated the issues.

**Committee Action:** Director Torliatt moved that the Committee recommend the Board approve the staff recommendations for FY 2004/2005 TFCA Regional Fund grant awards, as listed on Attachment 1, totaling \$8.9 million (including the Regional Rideshare Program), less the City of Sunnyvale sponsored Project #04R48; seconded by Director Miller; carried unanimously without objection.

The Committee discussed the issue of the allocation of \$1.5 million to provide incentives for surplus emissions reduction from refuse truck fleets. Ms. Roggenkamp explained that staff had received a

few TFCA Regional Fund grant applications from refuse haulers within cities. She further stated that the rule is new for trash haulers, and several people within the industry are helping to make it known as to what kind of options are available for cleaning up the garbage trucks. Another reason as to why staff needs to act on this quickly is to gather the emissions reduction. If the remaining FY 2004/2005 TFCA Regional Funds were opened up to all types of eligible projects, it would take additional resources and a very long time to act on it. Director Torliatt pointed out that if there were some refuse haulers who were allowed to apply for a grant in the first round of applications, then everyone should be allowed to compete in a second round.

Brian Bunger, Legal Counsel, explained that on the issue of competitiveness, staff evaluates the applications against a set of criteria and that, to the extent that they meet the threshold score, staff makes every effort to fund all the projects above that line at some level. This allocation is very time sensitive. The grant applications are complex and it is difficult sometimes for the project sponsors to submit them in a timely manner.

Peter Hess, Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer, stated that next year when this process is repeated, there will be more funds available, and that there would be a greater outreach to potential grant applicants.

**Committee Action:** Director Cooper moved that the Committee recommend the Board approve an allocation of \$1.5 million in FY 2004/2005 TFCA Regional Funds to provide incentives for surplus emissions reduction from refuse truck fleets; seconded by Director Silva; the motion passed with Director Torliatt voting No.

There were four public speakers on this agenda item:

Sam Altshuler, P.E.	Rick Ruvolo
Senior Program Manager	City & County of San Francisco; and
Pacific Gas & Electric Company	Chair, San Francisco Clean Cities Coalition
San Francisco	San Francisco
Renee L. Dowlin, AICP	Roger Hooson
Airport Environmental Planner	Senior Transportation Planner
Oakland International Airport	San Francisco International Airport
Oakland	San Francisco

**6.** Audit of the Transportation Fund for Clean Air County Program Manager Fund: *The Committee received a report on the audit of projects funded by the Transportation Fund for Clean Air County Program Manager Fund.* 

Andrea Gordon, Environmental Planner, presented the findings and recommendations of the audit, as well as the actions to be taken. She gave a brief update on the status of the previous County Program Manager audit recommendations. The District retained the firm of Macias, Gini & Company to conduct a review of the County Program Manager Projects for fiscal and compliance activities that took place as of the two-year period ended June 30, 2002. Audits were conducted on 52 projects in eight of the nine Bay Area counties. Projects underway in Solano County were not yet completed by the aforementioned date and, therefore, these were not included in the audit.

The auditor made minor findings in regard to administrative costs, unexpended funds, overpayment of funds, and the filing of the County Program Managers annual report. The auditor also made some comments on indirect costs and how these are charged to the TFCA program. Most of the County Program Managers audit findings were resolved by discussions between the District staff and the respective County Program Managers. Ms. Gordon pointed out that a complete summary of the auditor's findings was located in Attachment A of the staff report.

In conclusion, Ms. Gordon stated that the County Program Managers audit findings will be addressed through administrative changes by the County Program Managers and the District. Furthermore, District staff will make administrative changes to the TFCA program and work closely with County Program Managers to ensure that the administrative requirements are met.

Committee Action: None. This report was for information only.

- 7. Amendment to Contra Costa County Transportation Fund for Clean Air Expenditure Program For FY 2004/2005: The Committee considered recommending Board of Directors' approval of requested amendment to the Contra Costa County Program Manager expenditure program for FY 2004/2005 for two projects.
- 8. Amendment to Santa Clara County Transportation Fund for Clean Air Expenditure Program for FY 2004/2005: The Committee considered recommending Board of Directors' approval of requested amendment to the Santa Clara County Program Manager expenditure program for FY 2004/2005 for one project.
- **9.** Amendment to Solano County Transportation Fund for Clean Air Expenditure Program for FY 2004/2005: The Committee considered recommending Board of Directors' approval of requested amendment to the Solano County Program Manager expenditure program for FY 2004/2005 for two projects.

Item Nos. 7, 8 and 9 of the agenda were combined for purposes of presentation and discussion. Karen Chi, Environmental Planner, Grant Programs Section, presented staff's recommendations for amendments to the FY 2004/2005 TFCA Program Manager Expenditure Program for Contra Costa, Santa Clara and Solano Counties. Ms. Chi stated that on July 21, 2004 the District Board of Directors approved funding the FY 2004/2005 TFCA Program Manager Expenditure Programs for Contra Costa, Santa Clara and Solano Counties. After allocating the projects, each of the three Counties was left with unallocated balances as follows: (1) \$362,417 in Contra Costa County; (2) \$329,397 in Santa Clara County; and (3) \$136,219 in Solano County. The Project Managers in these three Counties have approved additional projects for TFCA funding and requested that these be added as amendments to their FY 2004/2005 expenditure programs.

Ms. Chi reviewed the projects and noted that all of the proposed projects were evaluated according to the Board-approved TFCA policies and meet the applicable policies, including the cost-effectiveness threshold.

Staff recommended Board approval of the allocation of additional funds for the following projects:

For Contra Costa County

• City of Martinez for the Class 1 Bicycle Path: Bay Trail Segment project (\$87,508)

• Contra Costa County General Services Department for the compressed natural gas (CNG) Direct-Line Fast-Fill Fueling Station (\$32,000)

## For Santa Clara County

• City of San Jose's Bascom Avenue Transit Signal Priority project (\$329,397)

## For Solano County

- City of Suisun City's Central County Bikeway Gap Closure project (\$32,000)
- Solano County Fleet Operations Division's Electric Vehicle Public Charging Station at Solano County Government Center Parking Structure (\$50,000)

**Committee Action:** Director Smith moved that the Committee recommend the Board approve staff recommendations for allocation of additional funds in the TFCA Program Manager Funds as an amendment to the FY 2004/2005 Program Manager TFCA Expenditure Program for additional projects in Contra Costa County, Santa Clara County and Solano County, as presented by staff; seconded by Director Cooper; carried unanimously without objection.

## 10. Committee Member Comments/Other Business: There were none.

**11. Time and Place of Next Meeting:** Chairperson Young cancelled the November 11, 2004 Committee meeting due to the holiday. The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for 9:30 a.m., Monday, December 6, 2004, 939 Ellis Street, San Francisco, CA 94109

## **12. Adjournment:** 10:48 a.m.

Neel Advani Deputy Clerk of the Boards

# **MOBILE SOURCE COMMITTEE**

## Follow-up Items for Staff

## October 14, 2004

## TFCA Regional Fund Grant Awards for FY 2004/2005:

1. Director Miller requested that Project # 04R48, sponsored by the City of Sunnyvale, be taken off the list of recommended projects for further review by staff.

## BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Inter-office Memorandum

To:	Chairperson Young and Members of the Mobile Source Committee
From:	Jean Roggenkamp Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer
Date:	November 29, 2004
Re:	Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Additional Regional Fund Grant Awards for FY 2004/05

#### **RECOMMENDED ACTIONS**

Recommend Board approval of the additional FY 2004/05 TFCA Regional Fund grant awards listed in Table 2.

## BACKGROUND

Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Sections 44241 and 44242, the Air District Board has imposed a \$4 surcharge on all motor vehicles registered within the agency's boundaries. This program is known as the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA). TFCA revenues are awarded to public agencies to implement eligible projects that reduce motor vehicle emissions and support the implementation of selected transportation and mobile source control measures in the *Clean Air Plan* and *Ozone Attainment Plan*.

By law, 60% of TFCA revenues are allocated by the Air District through a grant program known as the TFCA Regional Fund. A portion of the TFCA Regional Fund is earmarked for eligible programs implemented directly by the Air District, including the Smoking Vehicle Program, Vehicle Buy Back Program, Vehicle Incentive Program, Spare the Air Program, and Lower Emission School Bus Program. The balance is allocated on a competitive basis to projects proposed by public agencies.

The Air District received 66 grant applications totaling \$17.3 million in funding requests for FY 2004/05; \$10.5 million was available for allocation. On October 20, 2004, the Board of Directors approved staff recommendations for project grants. A total of 40 projects were awarded \$7.8 million in grants. The Board also approved the allocation of \$1 million for the Regional Rideshare Program and \$1.5 million to provide incentives for additional emissions reduction from refuse truck fleets, which are now subject to a new California Air Resources Board (CARB) regulation. Eight applications were found to be ineligible because they did not meet program policies and two project sponsors withdrew their applications. Staff requested additional time to revisit two applications (project #04R10 and #04R11) from the San Francisco International Airport, one of which (project #04R11) was partially approved for funding in the October 2004 Board meeting, and one application from the Oakland International Airport (project#04R24). Additionally, the Committee approved a request by Director Miller that project # 04R48, sponsored by the City of Sunnyvale, be taken off the list of TFCA Regional Fund FY 2004/05 recommended projects for further review by staff.

## **EVALUATION CRITERIA**

The Board-adopted criteria to score and rank proposals for FY 2004/05 are shown in Table 1 below. The evaluation criteria emphasize cost effectiveness in reducing emissions as the principal way to score points, accounting for 60% of the total possible score. Cost effectiveness is calculated by dividing the total TFCA funds proposed for the project by the estimated lifetime emission reductions for the project, yielding TFCA funds per ton of reduced emissions.

Criteria	Maximum Points
1. TFCA Funding Effectiveness	60
2. Other Project Attributes	15
3. Clean Air Policies and Programs	10
4. Disadvantaged Community	10
5. Promote Alternative Transportation Modes	5
Total	100

Table 1 - FY 2004/05	<b>TFCA Regional Fund</b>	Scoring Criteria
	8	8

The Board has adopted a 40-point minimum score for projects to be eligible to receive TFCA Regional Funds. The intent of this policy is to assure that TFCA funding is provided only to projects that achieve an acceptable level of effectiveness and benefit to the region.

## **AVAILABLE FUNDS**

TFCA Regional Funds totaling \$648,000 are available for additional allocation to eligible projects. The available amount consists of unallocated funds from the FY 2003-2004 Vehicle Incentive Program and the Charge! Program.

## **RECOMMENDED PROJECTS**

Staff contacted the different project sponsors to clarify details about the evaluation process for projects #04R10, #04R11, #04R24 and #04R48. During that process, project sponsors provided additional information relevant to their projects. With the revised information, staff reviewed again the four applications to determine eligibility, based on compliance with all relevant TFCA policies. Then staff evaluated the projects to determine their scoring. Table 2 below lists the final project scores for the four revisited projects. Following is a summary of the reasons that justify the staff's recommendation for TFCA Regional Fund grant awards to these projects.

Projects #04R10, #04R11, sponsored by the San Francisco International Airport, and project #04R24, sponsored by the Oakland International Airport, are new alternative fuel shuttle purchase projects. Project #04R11 originally requested \$157,900 and, at the October 20, 2004 Board meeting, was awarded \$98,720 for the funding of five of the eight airport shuttles requested for funding. In previous years, this type of project was funded based on the assumption that the grants would provide an important incentive to acquire a new alternative fuel vehicle (AFV) to entities that would have instead purchased a new diesel vehicle (shuttle). This year, staff initially intended to recommend funding of projects for sponsors that were verified to have diesel shuttles in their fleets because that was considered a reasonable indication that, without the monetary incentive, an operator would have bought a diesel vehicle instead of an AFV. Staff confirmed that the shuttle operators sponsored by projects #04R10 and #04R24 currently have only gasoline shuttles in their fleet, and that the shuttle operators for project #04R11 only had five diesel shuttles in their fleet. Therefore, the assumption was that the operators currently without diesel shuttles in their fleet would have purchased new gasoline shuttles, not new diesel shuttles. Based on California Air Resources Board's certification levels, there are no emissions reduction benefits when comparing a new gasoline shuttle with a natural gas/propane shuttle; therefore, the projects were originally not going to be recommended for funding. However, given the confusion created by this new evaluation methodology, and that project sponsors were caught in the transition process, staff has evaluated the projects for this round comparing a new diesel vehicle and a new AFV. With this assumption, these three projects are now recommended for funding, including the three more shuttles for project #04R11. With the revised assumption, the projects meet the minimum 40 point score and the \$90,000 per ton costeffectiveness level.

During the October 14, 2004 Committee meeting, staff also received direction to further review project #04R48, which staff planned to recommend be awarded \$58,100 instead of the \$130,560 requested by the project sponsor, the City of Sunnyvale. To comply with the Committee's instructions, staff met with City of Sunnyvale staff, who subsequently provided additional information related to the project. The new information resulted in revised assumptions for the project due to the project's location adjacent to a light rail station. Because pedestrians can walk from their neighborhood to the light rail station and travel throughout the light rail system, City of Sunnyvale staff requested that a significantly expanded average one-way total trip distance be used to estimate the cost effectiveness for the project. With the revised assumptions, project #04R48 now meets the minimum 40 point score and the \$90,000 per ton cost-effectiveness threshold requirement at the full funding level of \$130,560, and is recommended for funding at that level.

The sum of the four projects recommended for approval totals \$540,705 in TFCA Regional Funds.

## Table 2 - FY 2004/05 TFCA Regional Fund Applications

Project #	Cty	Sponsor	Project Title	TFCA \$ Per Ton	TFCA \$ Requested	Total Score
04R10	SF	San Francisco International Airport	Heavy-Duty Vehicle Replacement – Two LPG Airport Shuttles	\$21,792	\$27,300	84
04R11	SF	San Francisco International Airport	Heavy-Duty Vehicle Replacement – Purchase Eight New Compressed Natural Gas Airport Shuttles*	\$30,746	\$59,220	79
04R24	AL	Oakland International Airport	Heavy-Duty Vehicle Replacement – Twelve Compressed Natural Gas Airport Shuttles	\$34,444	\$323,625	74
04R48	SC	City of Sunnyvale	In-Pavement Crosswalk Warning Lights	\$44,053	\$130,560	70

## **Additional Projects Recommended for Funding**

\* Project 04R11 was approved for funding of five vehicles (\$98,700) at the October 2004 Board meeting. Staff recommends funding of three additional vehicles (\$59,220). The combined total funding level for this project is \$157,920 for a total of eight vehicles.

## **EMISSION REDUCTIONS**

The additional projects recommended for funding will result in additional emission reductions of 15.54 tons (ozone precursors and particulate matter) over the life of the projects, and an overall cost effectiveness of \$34,794 (TFCA dollars) per ton of emissions reduction.

## BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT

None.

Respectfully submitted,

Jean Roggenkamp Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer

Prepared by: J. Ortellado

FORWARDED: \_\_\_\_\_

## BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT Inter-office Memorandum

To:	Chairperson Young and Members of the Mobile Source Committee
From:	Jean Roggenkamp Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer
Date:	November 29, 2004
Re:	Expenditure Plan for Motor Vehicle Registration Surcharge

## **RECOMMENDED ACTION**

Recommend Board approval of the expenditure plan for a \$2 increase in the motor vehicle registration fee surcharge within the Bay Area Air Quality Management District to fund an expanded Carl Moyer incentive program.

## BACKGROUND

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (Air District) has participated in the Carl Moyer Program since its inception in fiscal year 1998-1999. The current program provides incentives to reduce nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions from heavy-duty diesel vehicles, vessels and equipment. To date, the Air District has allocated over \$12.3 million to 68 projects, achieving estimated annual emission reductions of 773 tons of NOx and 46 tons of particulate matter.

AB 923 (Firebaugh) was passed by the Legislature and signed by the Governor. This legislation authorizes local air districts to increase motor vehicle registration fee surcharges from \$4 to \$6 to fund an expanded Carl Moyer Program. In order for the increased surcharge to be collected in the Bay Area, State law requires the Board to approve a resolution authorizing the increased surcharge *and* adopting an expenditure plan for the funding. The resolution must be transmitted to the California Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) prior to January 1, 2005 in order for the higher fee to be collected by DMV beginning April 1, 2005. On the recommendation of the Legislative Committee, the Air District Board of Directors approved the \$2 increase in the vehicle registration fee surcharge on October 20, 2004. This report to the Mobile Source Committee presents the expenditure plan for the funds.

## DISCUSSION

The increased surcharge would generate approximately \$11 million annually for the expanded Carl Moyer Program. The types of projects eligible for the new funding, as specified in AB 923, include:

• Projects eligible for grants under the current Carl Moyer Program, including:

- o on-road heavy-duty vehicles,
- o off-road equipment,
- o locomotives,
- o marine vessels,
- stationary agricultural irrigation pumps,
- o forklifts, and
- airport ground support equipment.
- The purchase of school buses pursuant to CARB's Lower Emission School Bus Program, including:
  - a school bus purchase and infrastructure component to replace the oldest, highest-polluting buses with new, lower-emitting buses meeting the latest federal motor vehicle safety standards, and
  - a retrofit component to significantly reduce particulate matter emissions from the in-use diesel school bus fleet.
- The purchase, retrofit, or repower of previously unregulated agricultural sources of air pollution; and
- An accelerated light-duty vehicle scrap and/or repair program.

In addition, AB 923 expands the focus of the Carl Moyer Program to include projects that reduce hydrocarbon and particulate matter emissions. The current program focuses on projects that reduce nitrogen oxide emissions. This new funding will augment and complement the incentives currently provided by the Air District, resulting in significant additional air quality and public health benefits in the Bay Area.

## BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT

AB 923 allows the Air District to be reimbursed for its administrative costs, subject to a 5% cap, to operate the grant program. The resources needed to administer the new grant program will be incorporated into the FY 2005/06 budget.

Respectfully submitted,

Jean Roggenkamp Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer

Prepared by: J. Ortellado

FORWARDED: \_\_\_\_\_